
 
Committee: 
 

CABINET 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2013 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 10.00 A.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Apologies  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 3 September, 

2013 (previously circulated).    
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader  
 
 To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the 

agenda the item(s) are to be considered.   
  
4. Declarations of Interest  
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.    

  
5. Public Speaking  
 
 To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.    
  

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny   
 

None  
 

 Reports  
 
6. Funding and Provision of Community Alarm and Telecare Services (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Leytham) 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Health & Housing)   



 

 

  
7. Budget Update – Funding Prospects 2014/15 Onwards (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning) 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Resources)  

  
8. Wind Turbine Developments and Separation Distances (Pages 19 - 23) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson) 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning  

  
9. Urgent Business Report (Pages 24 - 25) 
 
 (Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire) 

 
Report of the Chief Officer (Governance)  
 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry, 

Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith 
 
(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email 

ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 

 
 
MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Thursday, 26 September 2013.   

 



 

 
 

CABINET  
 
 

Funding and Provision of Community Alarm and 
Telecare Services 
8 October 2013 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Health and Housing) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to outline the impact of changes to Lancashire County Council’s 
funding and provision of community alarm and telecare services on the services provided by 
Lancaster City Council. 
 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 5 August 2013 

This report is public. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR LEYTHAM 

(1) That  the impact of the announcements of the county council regarding  the 
provision of  telecare and community alarm services on the future viability on 
maintaining the emergency call centre is noted. 

(2) The council reviews the services provided by the emergency call centre and 
considers how they could be provided in the future. 

(3) That officers are authorised to take action to ensure appropriate 
arrangements are in place to ensure business continuity is maintained 
pending the outcome of the review. 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The council provides community alarm and telecare services on behalf of 
Lancashire County Council through contracts awarded by Lancashire 
Supporting People and Lancashire Telecare. These services are provided 
through the council’s emergency call centre, and staff within the council 
housing section. 

 
1.2 The county council were in the process of bringing these services “in-house” 

and delivering them through their strategic partner, One Connect Limited, and 
other suppliers. The council had been advised that this would occur during 
2013/14. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



 

1.3 The county council were awarding the monitoring element of the services to 
One Connect Limited. The county had also recently announced that they had 
appointed a national company to manage the overall Lancashire Telecare 
Service which included assessment, installation, monitoring, and response in 
conjunction with One Connect Limited; we had also been advised that the 
telecare response services had been subcontracted to a national company. 
The existing Lancashire Supporting People and Lancashire Telecare 
providers had not been allowed to compete for this work or for these 
contracts. There was a likelihood that the provision of Lancashire Supporting 
People was to follow a similar delivery model. 

 
1.4 However, on the 6 August 2013 the county council announced that they were 

no longer pursuing this procurement route. The county council have advised 
that they are to review the approach to the proposed policy and provision of 
telecare. The county council have also given notice that they are reviewing 
their position in relation to the procurement of community alarm services. 

 
1.5 The county council have indicated that they will be tendering out the telecare 

service though a competitive tendering process. The timing and lotting of the 
tender is not clear but it is likely to be at a Lancashire area level or pan – 
Lancashire. It is unlikely that the council would be able to compete on that 
basis. 

 
1.6 The future procurement position for Lancashire Supporting People community 

alarm services is also not clear. At a meeting on the 11 September, with the 
existing providers, including the council, the county council confirmed that a 
further review was to be undertaken. This should be concluded in December 
2013 with further consultation. 

 
1.7 The county council have now asked the existing Lancashire Telecare 

providers to consider extending the current Lancashire Telecare contract to 
the 31 March 2014, with an option for a further six month period to the 30 
September 2014 by mutual agreement pending their decisions on future 
procurement. They have also indicated that they wish to discuss the price of 
the contract extension. These announcements continue the uncertainty about 
the future viability of the emergency call centre and the council remaining a 
future provider of telecare and community alarm services. It also continues 
the anxiety of the staff over their future employment.  

 

2.0 Impact 

2.1 Emergency Call Centre – The council’s emergency call centre provides the 
monitoring services for a range of community alarm and telecare services. 
This includes: approximately 1,916 community alarm users (884 council 
housing and 1,032 private sector) of which 1,204 are commissioned by and 
receive funding from Lancashire Supporting People; and approximately 142 
telecare alarm users of which 132 are funded by Lancashire Telecare. 

 
2.2 The Lancashire County Council contracts account for over 50% of the 

monitoring services provided, both in terms of volume and finance. The loss 
of these contracts would present significant financial issues and would make 
the provision of the emergency call centre unsustainable. 

Page 2



 

 
2.3 Other services – The council uses the spare capacity within its emergency 

call centre to provide a range of other services including responding to out of 
office hours emergency call relating to council services, and lone worker 
monitoring. The emergency call centre also plays a part in emergency 
planning. The loss of the community alarm and telecare contracts would 
mean that the future provision of these services will need to be reviewed and 
procured. 

 
2.4 Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity - The current arrangements 

for the emergency call centre are robust and are provided by another 
community alarm provider. The disaster recovery and business continuity 
arrangements for the emergency call centre will need to be reviewed in the 
light of the county council announcement.  

 
2.5 Installation and Response – The council also provides an installation and 

response service for community alarms and telecare, and these elements of 
the community alarm and telecare services are also affected by the decision 
of the county council. 

 
2.6 Staffing - Staff have been aware of the county council intentions and this 

obviously has led to uncertainty and anxiety within the workforce about their 
future employment. The county council had already been advised that the 
council considers that TUPE would apply at the point of any transfer. The 
announcement by the county council on the 6 August continues this 
uncertainty. 

 
2.7 Given the county council are now seeking to extend the existing contracts for 

potentially up to 12 months we will need to review our staffing arrangements. 
One member of staff has already confirmed that they will be leaving in 
November 2013 with potential for other staff turnover. With the extended 
uncertainty this situation could get progressively more difficult to manage over 
the coming months. 

 
2.8 Summary – The council needs to manage the impact of the continuing 

uncertainty the announcement the county council has made. The priority in 
the short term will be to decide how the council can continue to operate the 
emergency call centre and the services it provides, and whether or not the 
council wishes to extend its existing contracts with the county council for both 
telecare and community alarm provision.  

 
2.9 In the medium to long term, ultimately, with the potential loss of the county 

council contracts for telecare and for community alarms the remaining 
services are not sufficient to justify maintaining the emergency call centre in 
its current form. 

 
2.10 The services that would remain include 1,032 private sector community alarm 

customers which sit outside any county council contract and is a service 
directly provided by the council.  These users will need to transfer to an 
alternative provider should the council cease to be a community alarm 
provider. 

Page 3



 

 
2.11 A service provider will also need to be found for the emergency out of office 

hours services provided by the council, and also to provide lone worker 
monitoring. 

 
2.12 The county council were looking to provide additional services through One 

Connect Limited including an offer of a free service to district councils to 
provide out of office hours emergency contact but the extent of this offer is 
still not clear. 

 
2.13 There has also been an approach from the emergency call centre’s disaster 

recovery and business continuity provider who has expressed an interest in 
taking on the council’s private sector community alarm customers, and also 
provide out of office hours emergency contact for the services the council 
provides and also lone working. 

 

3.0 Proposal Details 

3.1 It is proposed that the council reviews the provision of services provided by 
the emergency call centre and considers how they could be provided in the 
future including the consideration of alternative providers for the services and 
functions that would remain should the council lose the Lancashire County 
Council contracts. Officers will continue in the discussions with the county 
council and the provider of the emergency call centre’s disaster recovery and 
business continuity services to further report on the options for future service 
provision. 

 

4.0 Details of Consultation  

4.1 There will need to be detailed consultations with customers and staff. 
 

5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

 Option 1: The council seeks to 
maintain an emergency call 
centre to provide the services 
that remain following the loss of 
the Lancashire Telecare and 
Supporting People contacts 

Option 2: The council  reviews the 
services provided by the emergency 
call centre and considers how they 
could be provided in the future; 
including the consideration of 
alternative providers for the services 
and functions that would remain 
following the loss of the Lancashire 
Telecare and Supporting People 
contacts 

Advantages Local, flexible, responsive service 
delivered through a valued local 
knowledge base 

Services provided to a specified 
standard, and achieves value for 
money  
Reduction in costs. 

Disadvantages Service would be provided at a 
loss and the council would have 
to fund any deficit - expectation 
that financial costs of running the 
emergency call centre would not 
meet value for money principles. 

Potential loss of flexibility and 
knowledge 

Page 4



 

Does not provide for considering 
a wider range of options. 

Risks The volume of work would not be 
sufficient to warrant maintaining 
the emergency call centre, and 
its infrastructure. The loss of 
income from the contacts could 
not be replaced, and equivalent 
cost reduction could not be 
achieved.  The overall financial 
costs of running the emergency 
call centre would not meet value 
for money principles, and so 
would not be in the best interests 
of housing rent payers in 
particular.  Ultimately, risk of 
failure in the Council’s fiduciary 
duties, leading to challenge. 

Control of future quality and cost of 
services. 
 
The contractual arrangements will 
need to be robust and clear to ensure 
that future costs are controlled 

 

6.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

6.1 The officer preferred option is option 2 to ensure that an appropriate service 
provision is maintained to the standard the council requires, achieving value 
for money and that future costs are controlled.  

7.0  Conclusion 

7.1 The loss of the Lancashire Telecare and Supporting People contacts would 
leave the council’s emergency call centre in an unsustainable position, and 
maintaining the centre would not represent value for money. For this reason it 
is necessary to consider alternative provision for the service areas and work 
that would remain. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
This report support two key themes that underpin the Council’s stated priorities: Working 
Together in Partnership and Managing the Council’s Resources. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

None directly arising out of this report 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Legal Services have been consulted and should option 2 be approved would advise on all 
matters of a contractual nature arising from such a decision. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The ultimate loss of both the Lancashire Telecare (£89,400 for 2014/15) and the Lancashire 
Supporting People (£127,100 for 2014/15) Contracts would have a significant financial 
impact resulting in the residual service running at an unacceptable deficit of £239,500 in 

Page 5



 

2014/15.  This assumes both contracts come to an end on 31 March 2014, but clearly any 
extension would reduce this position. 

Both these services come under the Housing Revenue Account and therefore do not impact 
financially on the General Fund.  However, there is a contribution of £29,800 (2014/15) from 
the General Fund towards the central control section in respect of private sector clients.  
This again would need to be factored into any future detailed financial appraisal of the 
viability of the section. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources: 

Structured consultation is vital to ensure the affected staff are fully aware of the proposals 
and potential impact on their ongoing employment. 

Although the council believes that TUPE would apply more detailed information is needed 
from the county council to fully assess the impact any changes will have on our staff that are 
directly engaged in delivering services and those whose duties are linked to service delivery. 

Information Services: 

None directly arising out of this report. 

Property: 

None directly arising out of this report. 

Open Spaces: 

None. 

 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The S151 Officer has been consulted and her comments reflected in the report.  

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

Contact Officer: Chris Hanna 
Telephone:  01524 582516 
E-mail: channa@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: C115 

 

Page 6



 

CABINET  
 

 

Budget Update –  
Funding Prospects 2014/15 Onwards 

08 October 2013 
 
 

Report of Chief Officer (Resources) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To provide an outline update on future funding prospects for General Fund services, in light 
of recent consultation being undertaken by Government. 
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision  Referral from Officer X 
Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

N/A 

This report is public. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR ABBOTT BRYNING: 
 
1. That the estimated budgetary implications (for General Fund services) arising from 

the latest Government consultation be noted. 
 
2. That the approach set out in section 3 be adopted for identifying budget savings, but 

it be kept under review as the budget develops. 
 
 
REPORT 

 
1 Government Proposals:  Future Years’ Funding 
 
1.1 Towards the end of July, Government issued a technical consultation on the Local 

Government Finance Settlement for 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The consultation sets out 
proposals regarding the funding reductions announced by Government so far this 
year. 

 
1.2 A briefing by the Local Government Association is attached at Appendix A.  At the 

time of writing this report, a countywide response to the consultation was being 
prepared. 

 
1.3 If the Government proposals are adopted, they would have major implications for the 

Council’s already bleak funding prospects, for General Fund services.  An indicative 
summary is attached at Appendix B.  In very simple terms, the outcome could be as 
follows: 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



 
− In next year, the savings target could increase by a little over £100K, raising it to 

around £1.2M.  This is linked to the Chancellor’s Budget back in March, which made 
reference to a further 1% funding reduction for Local Government. 

 
− In 2015/16, the Council could see its savings target increase to £3.5M, allowing for a 

15.3% cash reduction in its funding.  Cabinet will be aware that the current Financial 
Strategy is based on an indicative savings target of £2.3M, which subsequently 
increased to £2.7M drawing on the 10% headline funding reduction quoted in June’s 
Spending Review.  It is now clear, however, that the headline translates into a much 
bigger reduction for authorities, with district councils being worst affected.   

 
 
1.4 As well as presentational factors, proposed distribution changes also account for some of 

the movement: 
 

− In 2015/16 total New Homes Bonus is now proposed to be topsliced – 35% of the 
Council’s allocation may have to be passed on to the Local Enterprise Partnership, to 
help finance the Local Growth Fund.  

 
− Also worthy of note is, in effect, a proposal to extend council tax freeze compensation 

for 2013/14 tax decisions, for at least a year longer.  This also skews the distribution 
of funding. 

 
1.5 In short, Government is proposing fairly fundamental changes to previous funding 

arrangements and this is of real concern.  It does not help promote sound planning and 
decision-making. 

 
1.6 Although there are signs that the national economy is picking up, there is nothing to 

indicate that this will translate into a fundamentally different funding outlook for local 
authorities, and more particularly, for district councils. 

 
1.7 Finally, it should be noted that for simplicity, these very high level updates to the 

Council’s indicative financial prospects do not consider the impact of changing the 
Council’s council tax increase assumptions (currently set at 2% year on year), nor do 
they allow for any changes in tax yields from business rate income for the district.  
Aspects such as these will be covered in later reports. 

 
 
2 Tackling the Challenges:  Reserves and Balances 
 
2.1 Councils nationally will need to draw on their balances and reserves to tackle the 

challenges ahead.  Much has been made of this by Government in recent weeks but 
invariably, delivering major change and service reduction programmes will: 

 
- incur up front costs, and 
- take significant time to deliver. 

 

Page 8



 
2.2 The Council’s Financial Strategy reflects this reality.  Available unallocated balances 

(above the current minimum of £1M) are in the region of £2.5M, but may increase slightly 
depending on current year spending.  In simple terms, it could be viewed that balances 
give the Council only until mid-2015 to balance the annual budget.  

 
2.3 Other reserves could be reduced to some degree if circumstances warrant it - Invest to 

Save being a potential example - but this could restrict other opportunities for their use.  
To make best use of reserves and balances, the key is to take budget decisions early 
and plan out the associated service changes.  Again, this underpins existing Financial 
Strategy. 

 
 
3 Tackling the Challenges:  Identifying Savings  
 
3.1 Chief Officers are in the process of identifying many potential areas for saving and these 

will be reported to Members in due course.  
 
3.2 Whilst it is considered likely that some could be implemented without having significant 

impact on services to the public, in total they would not address the Council’s budget 
deficit.  In order to balance the Council’s books, there will need to be reductions and 
other changes in services that will have direct, adverse impact on the district and its 
residents and visitors.  For such areas, therefore, Member prioritisation and direction is 
required – decisions will not be easy. 

 
3.3 For these reasons, the following approach is proposed: 
 

− Management Team be tasked with an initial target of £1M recurring savings, from 
service restructuring, streamlining and any efficiency related proposals – i.e. those that 
would not have a marked bearing on front line or other service delivery standards.   At 
this stage, it is considered unfeasible to increase this target any further.  Furthermore, it 
should be recognised that even these measures will result in some delays in dealing 
with various work requests, and may well give rise to more complaints.  Whilst the risks 
attached can be managed to some degree, they cannot be avoided entirely.   

 
− Cabinet be tasked with prioritising service reductions and other similar annual savings 

in the order of at least £2.5M.  Members are encouraged to identify key areas for saving 
early on, to give more time to plan and develop options for service withdrawal. 

 
3.4 Regarding income generation, the introduction of new charges is one area that Members 

may wish to consider.  Alongside this, reviews of existing charges will be undertaken by 
Officers in the normal way, where there is expected to be continuity of service.  The 
Officers’ aim will be to achieve (at least) a break-even position where there is discretion 
to do so, or review the service provision further.  Overall however, the scope for 
increasing income generation is thought to have only limited impact on addressing the 
budget deficit. 

 
3.5 For invest to save ideas, with the exception of renewable energy, this needs no other 

specific consideration as inevitably, many savings options will involve up front costs 
anyway. 

Page 9



 
3.6 Arrangements are in hand to ensure that all associated budget proposals are developed 

and appraised in a robust manner, drawing on management and other information as 
appropriate. 

 
 
4 Options and Option Analysis 
 
4.1 The following options are available to Cabinet 
 

(1) Approve the proposals set out in section 3 for identifying savings proposals. 
(2) Identify and adopt an alternative approach, with the aim of achieving the indicative 

savings targets as outlined. 
 
 
5 Details of Consultation 
 
5.1 Consultation will be undertaken and developed as set out in the Budget and Policy 

Framework Timetable reported to Cabinet in September. 
 
5.2 Arrangements are in hand to brief all staff on the latest budget outlook.  Member 

briefings and other stakeholder communications can be arranged in due course.  
Managing customer, Member, staff and other stakeholder expectations is a difficult but 
important task in itself. 

 
5.3 Alongside the Council developing its budget reduction plans, other public service 

providers are going through similar exercises.  Although there is no real comfort in this, 
at some level there is a need to understand and recognise the knock on implications of 
decisions and their collective impact. 

 
 
6 Officer Preferred Option 
 
6.1 Option 1 – to adopt the proposals set out in section 3 for identifying savings proposals 

– is the Officer preferred option, to give structure to identifying reasonable savings from 
streamlining services, whilst also ensuring that Members focus on prioritising where to 
remove or significantly reduce service provision and other Council activities. 

 
 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
The proposals outlined in the report are in support of reviewing and updating the 
Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc) 
 
The annual review of the budget and policy framework ensures that the Council’s plans and 
strategies are kept up to date and compliant with the above criteria for assessing their 
impact on local communities. 

Page 10



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
As outlined in the report, although there are no direct implications at this point in time. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has produced this report, as part of her responsibilities. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Services have been consulted and have no observations to add to this report. 

DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

 
The Deputy Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has nothing to add to this report. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Government Technical Consultation:  Local 
Government Finance Settlement 2014-15 and 
2015-16.  
 
Addendum to the above consultation. 
 
 

Contact Officer:  Nadine Muschamp 
 

Telephone: 01524 582117 
 

E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 11



Appendix A
Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



20
13

/1
4

F
in

al
P

ro
vi

si
o

n
al

  
p

er
 M

T
F

S
L

at
es

t 
P

ro
vi

si
o

n
al

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

p
er

 M
T

F
S

L
at

es
t 

In
d

ic
at

io
n

D
if

fe
re

n
ce

£’
00

0
£’

00
0

£’
00

0
£’

00
0

£’
00

0
£’

00
0

£’
00

0

R
ev

en
ue

 S
up

po
rt

 G
ra

nt
7,

53
3

5,
75

3
5,

62
7

-1
26

3,
77

4
R

et
ai

ne
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
R

at
es

5,
01

2
5,

16
5

5,
17

5
10

5,
32

0

T
ot

al
 “

S
et

tle
m

en
t F

un
di

ng
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t”
*

12
,5

45
10

,9
18

10
,8

02
-1

16
10

,1
79

9,
09

4
-1

,0
85

N
ew

 H
om

es
 B

on
us

 *
*

77
1

88
6

88
6

0
94

4
80

8
-1

36

T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
in

g
 

13
,3

16
11

,8
04

11
,6

88
-1

16
11

,1
23

9,
90

2
-1

,2
21

Y
ea

r 
o

n
 Y

ea
r 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

**
* 

£5
26

K
£1

,5
12

K
£1

,6
28

K
£6

81
K

£1
,7

86
K

4.
2%

11
.4

%
12

.2
%

5.
8%

15
.3

%

£1
,1

21
K

£1
,2

37
K

£2
,3

43
K

£3
,5

64
K

N
o 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
as

 y
et

 fo
r 

an
y 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

F
un

d 
su

rp
lu

s 
or

 b
ud

ge
t s

av
in

gs
 g

en
er

at
ed

 in
 th

is
 y

ea
r 

(2
01

3/
14

).

APPENDIX B

**
20

13
/1

4 
N

ew
 H

om
es

 B
on

us
 is

 fi
na

l a
nd

 a
llo

w
s 

fo
r 

an
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t G
ra

nt
; f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s 

ar
e 

es
tim

at
ed

.

20
15

/1
6

10
,1

79
-1

,0
85

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

S
av

in
g

s 
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

*T
he

 S
et

tle
m

en
t F

un
di

ng
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t h
as

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
an

d 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ax
 F

re
ez

e 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

G
ra

nt
s 

ro
lle

d 
in

.

L
at

es
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 D

at
a

A
s 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

o
 C

ab
in

et
 0

8 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
01

3

20
14

/1
5

Page 18



 

 

CABINET  
  

08 October 2013  
 

WIND TURBINE DEVELOPMENTS AND SEPARATION 
DISTANCES 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning)  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To enable Cabinet to consider the petition submitted to Annual Council asking that 
the City Council as Local Planning Authority introduce a revised Development 
Management policy relating to wind turbines which introduces a minimum 
safeguarding distance between turbines and dwellings.  
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision  Referral from Council X 
Date Included in Forthcoming Key Decision n/a 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF CHIEF OFFICER (REGENERATION AND PLANNING)   
 
(1) That Cabinet notes the new guidance from DCLG on renewable and low carbon 

energy and that its revised policy in the publication version of the 
Development Management Development Plan Document complies with that 
guidance.  Furthermore it does not take steps to introduce separation 
distances between wind turbines and residential properties as to do so would 
be to ignore published national planning guidance.  

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 At Council on 13th May 2013 a petition was received from Mr Phil Storer , as follows:. 

“We have read the letter dated 16 April 2013 from the Chief Planning Officer at 
Milton Keynes to the Chief Planner at the CLG. We have also read the Joint Press 
Release from FELLS and FORCE dated 18 April 2013. 

We note that the judgement has been interpreted as confirming that local authorities 
can set exclusion zones to protect local people from inappropriate development and 
we petition Lancaster City Council to amend Lancaster City Council’s Core Strategy 
as adopted by Lancaster City Council on 23 July 2008, (or such other planning 
document as may be appropriate) so as to include a minimum separation distance as 
a safeguard to protect the amenity of wind turbine neighbours.” 

In accordance with the Constitution, the petition was referred to Cabinet for 
consideration. 

Agenda Item 8Page 19



1.2 The petitioners referred to a recent High Court decision made on 15th April 2013 
which related to a legal challenge by RWE and NPower Renewables against Milton 
Keynes Council. 

 

1.3 The petitioners may have read commentary on the decision, but such commentary is 
not wholly accurate. In fact the decision says that Local Planning Authorities are 
within their rights to prepare planning policy which does not mirror Government 
advice on any particular area of planning, but it also goes on to explain what steps 
the Secretary of State might take to block the adoption of such policies through the 
current processes for the formal adoption of plans and policies.  However, it does not 
say, as suggested by the petitioners, that councils can set exclusion zones which the 
Government cannot overrule.  

1.4 This report provides Members with advice on the current position and the 
implications for changing the Council’s current policy approach to planning 
applications for wind farms.  It is a matter for Members then to consider whether in 
the light of that advice they want to pursue a change to their current policy position.   
They must however take account of what the implications might be for the Council in 
defending such an approach at appeal, and in particular in relation to the issue of 
costs awards. 

 
2.0 Material Considerations  
 
2.1 The emerging draft Local Plan policy (DM18 Development Management DPD) has 

been formulated in the light of the Government’s consistent advice on the use of 
buffer zones. It adopts a criteria based approach which can be applied to the 
particular circumstances of any given case and updates the existing adopted policies 
in the Local Development Framework Core Strategy and the saved Lancaster District 
Local Plan policies, against which current planning applications are determined.  The 
emerging policy as drafted appears to mirror exactly what the Government’s latest 
position advocates. In short this Council has always understood that there was an 
appropriate balance to be considered.   It has never seen the Government’s targets 
for renewables as an absolute consideration. 

 
2.2 As Lancaster District is geographically quite different from the landscape in and 

around Milton Keynes there would be a need to demonstrate a rationale for 
introducing spacing criteria between turbines and housing which could be practically 
and consistently applied and reasoned.  This is much easier in a generally flat 
landscape, but difficult in one characterised by upland areas and rolling valleys.  
Difficulties with objective interpretations would occur when a spacing distance, which 
might be suitable in flatter locations such as the coastal plain, had to be applied in 
hillier locations such as the Lune Valley.   

 
2.3 The High Court judgement relating to the issue of spacing distances suggests that 

any council could consider introducing spacing distances provided they can produce 
a clear and objective reason for doing so.  However, this needs to be balanced 
against the views expressed by Mark Prisk MP (Minister for Housing – DCLG) prior 
to the issuing of the latest guidance. 

  
 “We have made it clear in Parliament that fixed separation distances nationally would 

cut across our localist approach.  Speaking generally, fixed separation distances 
could automatically rule out locations which would otherwise be suitable for wind 
turbines.  It is much better for local councils to use their local plans to help shape 

Page 20



where development should and should not take place, as the (National planning 
Policy) Framework encourages”. 

 
2.4 The High Court decision does not simply concern itself with the rights and wrongs of 

spacing distances. The High Court decision considers in detail issues surrounding 
the status of and the procedures for adopting Development Plan Documents and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance.  It also highlights the Secretary of State’s ability 
to intervene and apply national planning policy through the examination processes 
undertaken by the Planning Inspectorate.  In short Councils cannot introduce a set of 
policies which are not judged to be sound by the Secretary of State.   

 
2.5. Since the High Court decision and the ministerial statements, the Government has 

clearly given full consideration to the issue of spacing distances.  In the revised 
practice guidance issued on 29th July 2013 the position is made clear. 

 
Para 16. Local Planning Authorities should not rule out otherwise acceptable energy 
developments through inflexible rules on buffer zones or separation distances.  Other 
than dealing with set back distances for safety, distance of itself does not necessarily 
determine whether the impact of a proposal is unacceptable.  Distance plays a part, 
but does so in the local context including factors such as topography, the local 
environment and near-by land uses.   This is why it is important to think about in what 
circumstances proposals are likely to be acceptable and plan on this basis.  

 
 
3.0 Conclusions 
 
3.1 The publication of the new practice guidance makes it clear that any attempt by local 

authorities, inspired by the Milton Keynes decision to introduce buffer zones or 
spacing distances will be blocked by the Secretary of State and the Planning 
Inspectorate through the appeals and Local Plan Adoption process.   The Council’s 
current policy in the draft version of its Development Management DPD is, however, 
entirely in line with the latest Government guidance. 

 
 
4.0 Details of Consultation 
 
4.1 There has been no external consultation at this stage other than that which has taken 

place in relation to the current drafting of the proposed Local Plan policy.   
 
5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
5.1 Option 1 Not to introduce an amended policy.  This option may still be challenged by 

groups opposing wind turbine development through the examination of the 
Development Management Development Plan Document, but is more likely to be 
found as a favourable approach by the Secretary of State.  The approach would be 
unpopular with some local communities including some Parish Councils as the view 
may be taken that the Council has declined to tighten the constraints imposed on 
wind farm developments.  This option would however be expected to receive support 
from the Secretary of State and the Planning Inspectorate, and avoid costs awards 
against the Council at appeal if it ignores national policy guidance.  

  
5.2 Option 2  To undertake a revision to the existing Development Management policy, 

as advocated by the petitioners, (and not by officers) to aim to include a minimum 
separation distance.   This option would in principle seek to satisfy the pressures 
being applied on the City Council to take this action, but will not be found acceptable 

Page 21



by the Secretary of State.  Equally opposition groups to turbine developments are not 
guaranteed to be satisfied if any spacing distances are not perceived by them to be 
adequate.  The creation of an appropriate evidence base will take time and impose a 
further funding burden on the existing Local Plan budget.  It would need a decision 
from Council to amend the policy and delay the progress of the Development Plan 
Document to adoption and place the Council at risk of costs awards against it at 
appeal. for ignoring national policy guidance.   

 
6.0 Officer preferred option 
 
6.1 Following the publication of the most recent guidance from the Government on 29th 

July 2013 the Officer recommendation is Option 1.  
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
The development of renewable energy is supported in the Council’s Corporate Plan and the 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy.  The Emerging Local Plan Development 
Management Document currently includes Policy DM18 which relates to Wind Turbines. 
 
  

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing)  Wind turbine developments have significant impacts predominantly on rural 
communities and require careful balance between the national and local community interests 
as well as the impact on landscape and ecology in areas such as Lancaster District which 
have a significant number of areas of special environmental protection.   
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The creation of an evidence base to support any change in policy would incur additional 
expenditure, which could not be justified following the publication of new national guidance.  
The risk of legal challenge through Judicial Review or costs at appeal also has to be 
acknowledged and the assumption is that any related costs arising would fall on reserves or 
balances, rather than them being met from existing revenue budgets. 
. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The s151 Officer has been consulted and she reiterates the need to give careful 
consideration to the financial implications of the options presented. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
The establishment of Development Plan policy which achieves full legal weight is beneficial 
to the district because it enables development to be controlled in an effective manner.  There 
is a risk to be attached to a strategy which promotes new policy in conflict with the 
Government’s new policy guidance.  That risk comes in two forms.  On the one hand full 
legal weight could not be delivered for such a policy contrary to the Secretary of States latest 
guidance.  On the other hand the emerging use of such a policy before being examined by 
the Secretary of State could lead to a risk of costs being incurred at appeal or the same legal 
challenge faced by Milton Keynes Council.  Members need to consider these potential 
implications. 
 
 

Page 22



MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Milton Keynes Council 
Wind Turbines Supplementary Planning 
Document and Emerging Policy July 2012 
 
R(RWE Npower renewables) V Milton 
Keynes Council [2013] EWHC 751; 15 April 
2013. 
 
Ministerial Statements by the Secretary of 
State for Communities and Local 
Government, and Minister of State for 
Business, Innovation and Skills and 
Department of Energy and Climate Change. 
6th June 2013.  
 
Planning practice Guidance for renewable 
and low carbon energy  29th July 2013 
 

Contact Officer:  Andrew Dobson  
 
Telephone: 01524582303 
E-mail: adobson@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 23



CABINET  
 

Urgent Business Report 
8 October 2013 

 
Report of Chief Officer (Governance) 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise Members of actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet Members. 
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision  Referral from Officers X 
Date of notice of forthcoming key decision n/a 

This report is public  

 
RECOMMENDATION  

1.0 That the actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
relevant Cabinet Members in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, 
in respect of the following, be noted:- 

 

1.1 REQUEST FOR THE CITY COUNCIL TO GIVE AGREEMENT FOR AN 
APPLICATION TO BE MADE TO THE DCLG TO FUND A PROJECT TO 
TACKLE PROBLEMATIC HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 

(1) That the Chief Executive under urgent business agrees to Lancaster City 
Council submitting an application to the DCLG Rogue Landlords funding, 
subject to there being no additional cost implications for the City Council.  

(2) That the General Fund Revenue Budget is updated accordingly, split across 
relevant financial years, in the event that the application is successful.   

(3) That consultation is undertaken with a view to waiving call in, in accordance 
with Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17, to enable the decision to be 
implemented immediately.   

2.0 Background 

In July 2013 the Housing Minister announced that £3 million was being made 
available to help Local Authorities tackle acute and complex problems with 
rogue landlords in their area and details were received on 12th August.  
Initially it was perceived that the funding was aimed at authorities in the south 
of England to deal with the "beds in sheds" landlords.  On further 
reflection after returning from annual leave in the first week of September, the 
Housing Standards Officer thought that a good business case for a project 
similar to one carried out in the west end a few years ago could be made.  

Agenda Item 9 Page 24



 
Notice of this key decision (in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, Part 3, was provided on 11 September 2013 under 
regulation 11 enabling the decision to be taken on 19 September.  However, 
as the deadline for the application was 20 September 2013, the Chairman of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) was consulted and agreed to waive the five day 
call-in period in order for the decision to be implemented immediately. 
 
After consulting with the Leader and the Cabinet Member with Responsibility 
for Health and Housing, and with the Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny, the 
Chief Executive took the decision. 

 
3.0       Conclusion 
 

Approval was given to the above action, which is reported to this meeting in 
accordance with the City Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Section 4, Cabinet 
Procedure Rule 1.10(b). 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
Comments were contained in the original report. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

Comments were contained in the original report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

Comments were contained in the original report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Comments were contained in the original report. 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Comments were contained in the original report. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

Comments were contained in the original report. 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

Comments were contained in the original report. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

none 

Contact Officer: Liz Bateson 
Telephone:  01524 582047 
E-mail: ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 25


	Agenda
	6 Funding and Provision of Community Alarm and Telecare Services
	7 Budget Update Œ Funding Prospects 2014/15 Onwards
	App A LGA Briefing Settlement Cabinet 081013.pdf
	App B Updated Settlement Forecast Cabinet 081013.pdf

	8 Wind Turbine Developments and Separation Distances
	9 Urgent Business Report

